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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of
HL Promoters Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of HL Promoters Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Stalement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes In Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information

Im our opinion and io the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financlal Statements give the information reguired by the Compandes Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”} in the
mannar 5o required and give a fnue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amandad
(*Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accapied In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024, its loss including otfier comprefensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date,

Basiz for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act Our responsibilities under those Standards ara further describad in
tha Auditor's Responsibililies for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independant
of the Comparny in accordance with the Codea of Ethics issued by the Instifute of Chartared Accountants of India
together with the efhical requirements thal are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thersunder, and we hawve fulifled our othar ethical reaponsibilities in
gccordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethlcs. We believe that the audit evidence we have
ootained is sufficiant and appropriata to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statemants.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditer's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ather information. The ofher information comprises the
informatien included in the Board's Report, bul does nol include the Financial Statements and our auditors'
report theraon. The Board's Report s expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Cur opinion on the Financizl Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any formn
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether such other information Is materially nconsistent with the Financial Statements or
our knowledge oblained in the audit or othenvise appears o be materially misstated, if, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a maleral misstatement of this other information, we are required o
raport that fact.

As and when we receive and read the Boards Report, in the event we conclude that there is & material
mizgstatement therein, we are required o communicale the matter lo hose charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Direclors is responsible for the mallers stated in section 134(5) of the Acl with respect

to the preparation of these Financial Statemenis that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financal
parformance including other comprahansive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

4



Cont. Sheet No.2 T. P, Oarwal & Associates LILTP
Chartered Aceountands

accordance with the IND AS and other accounting principles generally sccepted in india, This respansibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for praventing and detecting frauds and other imagularifies:
seloction and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementaticn and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals,
that were cperating effectively for ensuring the acouracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to tha preparation and presentation of tha Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
rmatarial misststernent. whather due {o frawd or arror,

In prepasing the Financlal Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o
continue as 8 going concam, disclosing, as applicable, matlers retaled 1o going concem and using the gaing
concem basis of accounting unless management elther intends (o liguidate the Company or to cease operalions,
or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Uur objectives ara to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstaternant, whiathar dua fo fraud or amor, and o ssue an audilor's report that includes our
opinion, Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance, bt is nol a guaraniee that an audit conductad in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatementis can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually er In the aggregats, they could reasonably be expecied
to influenca the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statemenis,

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
soepticism throwghout the audit, We also!

Identify and assess the risks of materal misstatemeant of the Finandal Stalements, whether due to fraud
or arror, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit evidencs that |s
sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulling from fraud is higher than for one resulting from arror, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obfain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
arg appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
eMpiressing our opinion on wheather the Company has adequate intamal finrancial contrals with reference o
Financial Statements in place and the operaling effectivenass of such controls.

*  BEwvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablaness of accounting estimates
and retsted disclosures made by managemant.

*  Conchude on the approprialensss of managament's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audi evidence obtained, whether a miaterlal uncerainly exisis related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continua as a going concern, i we conclude
that @ matenial uncertainty axisis, we are required (o draw atiention in our auditar's reporl 1o the related
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, If such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up fo the date of our auditors report. However,
fulure events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to continue as a gaing concem.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financal Statemants, incuding the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statemeants represent the underlying transactions and events In a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Wea communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findinga, including any significant deficiencias in internal control that we
identify during our audil
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements mgarding independance, and to communicate with them all relationships and other mattars that
may reasonably be thought te bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As maguired by the Companies (Auditor's Repon) Order, 2020 (“the Order), issued by the Cantral
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
“Annexura A" of this reporl a statement on the matters spacified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the
euctent applicabie,

2, As required by Section 143(3) of the Acl, we rapart that

() We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposas of our audlt;

(bh In our opinion, proper books of sccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far a8 i
appears from aur examination of those books:

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Lass including the Stalement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Slatemant of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statemant dealt with by this Report are
in agraement wilh the books of account:

(d} In cur opénion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the IND AS as specified under Section
133 of the Act;

{&) The Company has recaived infimation from the directors as on March 31, 2024 thai the directors ara
not disqualfied from being appointad as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

() With respect 10 the adaquacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Flnancial
Statements and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer io our separate Report in “Annexura
B7;

(g} In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given to us, no manaparial
remuneration is paysble for the year ended March 31, 2024 by the Company 1o s directors,
Accordingly, the provisions of saction 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are nat applicable;

{h] With respact to the other matters to be included in the Auditcr's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rulaa, 2014, in our opinion and fo the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosad the impact of pending liigations on its financial position in its Financial
Statements — Refer Note 40 and 42 to the Financial Statements:

ii.  The Company did nol hava any long-term coniracts including derivative contracts for which fere
ware any maledal foresesable losses,

fi. There was no amount which was required to be transferrad to the Invesior Education and
Protection Furnd during the year,

. (8) The management has represented thal, to the best of #'s knowledge and belief. no funds (which
aré matarial sither individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or laaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premum or any olher sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any ether persan ar anlity, including fereign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in wriing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly arindirectly lend or invast in ofther persons or entities identified in &ny manner whatsosver
by ar on behalf of the Company {"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes, security or the
like on behalf of the Ulimate Benseficiaries;
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(b) The management has represented, thal, 1o the besi of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregals) have been recelved by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entily ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, dirsctly or indirectly,
lend or invest In other parsons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Parly (“Ultimate Beneficlarkes™) or provide any guarantaa, security or the like on behaif
of the Uitimate Benseficiaries;

(e} Basad on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come fo our notice thal has caused us to believe that the
represantations under (a} and (k) above, contain any material misstaternent.,

The Company has not paid or declared any dividend during the year,

Relying on Information, publication and other explanations provided by the software product
vendor, the Company and test checks carried out on the software application, we raport thal, in
our opinden the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) faciity and that has been oparating threughaout
the year for all relevant iransactions recordad in the software, Further, to the extant audit rail was
enabled, during our audit, we did nol notice any instance of audit trail feaiurs being tamparad with,
Additionally, the zudit trall has been preserved by the Company as per the slalutory reqguirements
for record retention.

For T. P. Oarwal & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisiration Mo, 124444W0% 1001 50

et

Esha P. Shah

Partner

Membershdp Mumber: 143874
UDIN: 241438T4BEKFTRAE38Y

Place: Mumbai
Date: Apdl 26, 2024
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Annexure - & to the Independent Auditors” Report on the Financial Statements of HL Promotars Private
Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1, under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report
af avan dats)

i (a)ja} The Company has maintained proper records showing full pariculars, including
quantitative detalls and situation, of property, plant and equipment,

{aKB] The Company does not have any Infangible assats, Accordingly, paragraph 3iaHB) is
not applicable to the Company,

(i) The Company has conducted physical varification of property, plant and equipment and
no matarial discrepancies were noticed during such verification,

() According lo the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
immovable properies ane held by the Company, Accordingly, paragraph 3(I4e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the informabion and explanations ghven to us by the management, the
Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Also, the
Company coes nol have any intangible assel as at March 3, 2024, Accordingly,
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

{e} According to the information and explanations given to us by the managament, no
procesdings have been Initated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and
rulas made thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3{ilie) of the Crder |3 not applicable fo the

Company,

i (a1) According fo the infermalicn and explanations given fo us, the Campany has conducied
physical verification of Inventory al reasonable intervals as on March 31, 2024, which In
our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
Invertary. No material discrepancies were noficed on such physical verification,

(=1} According 1o the information and explanalions given to us by the management, the
Company has not bsen sanctioned any working capital mits from barks or financlal
instiutions during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3{ii)(b) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company,

i Aceoeding o information and explanation given to us by the management, during the year
e Company has not made investments in, nor provided any guarantes or SECUrity or
granted any Ioans or advances in the nalure of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firmsa, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, Accordinghy,
paragraphs 3iil}a) to {T) of the Order are not applicabls to the Company.

f According 1o the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not granted any loan or made ary investmani or given any guarantees or
securifies as defined under Section 185 and 188 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

¥ The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public nor has it received any
amounts which are deemed 1o be deposits within the meaaring of Sections 73 to 76 of (he
Act and the Companies (Acceplance of Daposits) Rules, 2014 (as amendad). Accerdingly,
paragraph 3(v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Wi Wi have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Rules made by the Central Governmeant for the maintanance of cost records undar
saclion 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained, However, we have not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view lo determine whether they are accurate or
compleds,

I|-?"
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vi  (a)  Acgording to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us,
the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statulcry duss inchuding
inceme-tax and other materal statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent
applicable. There are no undisputed statutory dues payable for a period of more than six
maonthas from the date they bacame payable as af March 31, 2024,

ib] According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, statutory dues In raspect of
Incenne Tax have nol bean deposited with the appropeiate authorities as glven below:

Period 1o which | Forum where
“’“g‘l:lfam‘” Mature of Dues |  Amount the Amount dispute s
[Rs in lakhs) Relates pending
Income  Tax | Tax Deducted | 387.24 lakhs AN 1517 CITiAppeal)
Ak, 1861 at Sowrce
wili According to the information and explanations given to us by the managemant, thers are

no ransactions not recorded in the books of account which have been sumandered or
disclosed as income during the year in the {ax assessments under the Income Tax A,
1961 {43 of 1861).

[ {a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given o us by
the management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other
borrowings or in payment of intereat thareon ta any lender during the year.

({=]] According o the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company does not hava any loans or borrowings from any bank or financial institution or
cther lender. Accordingly, paragraph 3{ix}b) of the Order is not applicable 1o the
Company.

o) According fo the information and explanations given to us by the management the
Company has not taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph Hixife)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(d According to the information and explanations given ta us, thers are no funds raised on
short term basis. Accordingly, paragraph 3{lx)id) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e} According to the information and explanations given o us, the Gompany has nat taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to mest the obligation of it's
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix}a) of the Order is
not applicable o the Company.

i According fo the Information and explanations. glven to us, the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in it's subsidiaries, associales or
Ioint verdures. Accordingly, paragraph 3(klf) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

X [a) According 1o the records of the Company and information and explanations given ta us,
the Lompany has not ralsed any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments), Accordingly, paragraph 3{x){a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(] According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us,
the Company has made preferential aliotment of optionally convertible dabentures during
the year and the requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder have been complied with, The funds raised from the issue of aforesaid

e debentures have bean utilised for the purposes for which the funds were raised.
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xi {a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given o
us, ne fraud by the Company or fraud on the Company noliced or reported during the year,
Accordingly, paragraph 3{xi){a) of the Order |s not applicable to the Company.

23] According to the information and explanations given to us inchuding the represantation
made to us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 12
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Governmeant of India for
he period coverad by our audit. The provisions of Cost audit and Secrelasial Audit are nol
applicable to the Company,

] According to the informabon and explanation given o us by the management, the
Company has not recelved any whistle-blower complaints during the year. Accordingty,
paragraph 3{xi){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii In our epinkan and according fo the information and explanation given to us, the Company
Is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xiiia) to (c) of the Order are not
applicable to tha Company.

wlii Ir respect of ransactions with related parties,

(=) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
managemeant, section 177 of the Act iz not applcable 1o the Company.

3] In ouf opinion and according io the Information and explanations given % us by the
managemant, section 188 of the Acl is nol applicable to the Company.

xiv (@) According to the information and explanation given fo us by the management, the
Company is not required to 1o carry oul the internal audit as per section 128, Accordinghy,

paragraphs 3{xii)(a) and 3[xii)b).

Ky According to the informaticn and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has nol entered into any non-cash
transactions with its direclors or persons connecled with them during the vear
Aecordingly, paragraph 3{xv} of the Order Is not applicable to the Company,

wdi  {a) The Company is not required fo be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, paragragh 3(xvi){a) of the Order is not applcable to the
Company.

(K] The Company has not conducted any Mon- Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activitias without a valid Certificale of Registration (CoR) from the Resarve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) The Company is nol a Core invastment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India,

{d} According o the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group
has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two CICs which
are not required fo be registerad with the Reserve Bank of ndia,

v Tha Company has Incurred cash losses of Rs. 228,42 lakhs during the financial year and
Re. 333.90 [akhs in the immediately praceding financial year,

xfiii There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, Accondingly,
paragraph 3(xvili) of the Ordar i not applicable 1o the Company.

i We draw aftention to Note 43 of the financlal stalements which explains that the Compary
has incurred losses in the current and previous year and has sccumulated losses as at
March 31, 2024. Based on the above and according fo the information and explanations
givan 1o us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected datas of
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redization of financial assets and payment of financial labiliies, other information
accompanying the financial stalements, our knowledge of the Board of Direclors and
managemant plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporiing the
assumptions, nothing has come 0 our attention, which causes us to beleve thal ary
matedial uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is nat
capable of meating is liabilies existing at the date of balance sheet as and when thery Fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheel date. We, however, stale that this
i5 ot Bn assurance as to the fudure viabikty of the Company, We further slate that our
reporting is based on the facts up o the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guaranies nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance shesl date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall dus,

3 The provisicns of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
paragraphs 3(xx) (a) and (b} @re not applicable to the Company.

xxi The Company is not required to prepare Conaclidated Financial Stataments. Accordinghy,

paragraph 3{xxi) is not applicable to the Company,

For T, P. Ostwal & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 1244440100150
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ANNEXURE B to Independant Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements of H L Promoters Private
Limited

Raport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We hawe audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of H L Promoters Private
Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunciion with our audit of the Financial Stalements of the
Company for the year ended on thal dale,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls basad
on the intermal control with reference 1o the Financial Statements criteria established by the Company
cansidenng the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mole on Audit of Intemnal
Financial Centrols over Financial Reporfing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1GAL).

These responsibiliies include the design, implementaticn and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controfs thal were operating effectively for ensuring the ordery and efficient conduet of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detacton of frsuds and
errors, the accuracy and complateness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reflable financial
information, as required undar tha Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company's Intemal financial confrods with referance o
Financial Stalements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audil in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controds over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) issued by
ICAl and the Standards on Audiling prascribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audii of internal financial controds with reference to Financial Statements. These Standards and the Cuidancs
Maote requing thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audil to abtain reasonabla
assurance aboul whether adeguate internal financial comlrols with respect to Financlal Statements was
establishad and maintained and if such controls operated effecthvely in all material respects,

Our audil Invelves parforming procedures W oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controks with rderancs to Financial Statements and their ooerating effectivensss. Our audit of intarmal financizl
controls with reference 1o Financial Statements included obtalning an understanding of internal financal contrals
with reference fo Financial Statements, assessing the risk that 8 material weskness existe, and testing and
evalualing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgmenl, including the assessment of the risks of materisl
misstatement of the Financial Statemants, whether dua to fraud or efror.

We beliave that the audit evidence we have ablained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for owr
audit opinion on tha Company's intermal financlal controls with refarance to Financial Stsements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's Internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements 8 a process designed to provide
reasonahle assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements
Tor exlernal purposes in accoedance with generally accepted accounting principles, & Company's internal
finenclal controls with reference to Financial Statements includes those palicies and procedures that (1] pertain
to the malintenance of mcords that, in reasonable defail, accurately and fairly reflact the transactions and
ificne of the assels of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions am recorded as
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necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of |he Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Campany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or imely detection of unaulhorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's agsats that
could have a material effact cn the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals with reference to Financial Statements

Because of tha inherent limitations of Infernal finandal controls with reference to Financial Statements, including
the poasibility of collusion or improper management override of condrols, material misslatements due 1o errar aor
fraud may ocour ahd nol be detectsd. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal financial controls with
reference lo Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference lo Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thal the degrea
aof compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorats,

Opinian

In our opirion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intermal finandal contrals with reference 1o
Financial Statemeants and such intemal financial conlrals with reference to Financial Stalements were operating
affectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with referance o Financial Statements critera
astablished by the Company consddering the essential components of internal controd stated in the Guidance
Mote,

Faor T, . Ostwral & Associates LLP

Chartered Acecountants
Firm Registration Mo, 124444WA1 00150

s

Esha P. Shah

Partnes

Membarship Mumber; 143574
UDIN: 241438T4EKFTRAS3ET
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HL Promolers Private Limited
Motes o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Background

HL Promaters Private Limited [CIN: U452000L2013PTC254832] ("the Company”) is & limited by shares,
incorporated and domiciled in India. The company incorporated on 3rd July, 2013, is a 51% subsidiary
of HLT Residency Private Limited (a 100% subskdiary of Tata Value Homeas Limited),

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 26
April 2024

Z. Matarial accounting policies

21

2.2

23

Statement of complianca

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) natified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant pravisions of the Act.

Baszis of preparation and presentation

The financial statemants have been prapared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instrumanis that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as axplained in the
accounling policies below.

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

The preparation of the financial statements In conformity with the ind A3 requires managament o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of eccounting polices and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the
reparted amounts of the revenues and expenses for the yvears presenfed. The estimates and associaled
assumptions are based on historical experiance and other factors thal ase considered to be ralevant,
Actual results may diffar from these estimates under different assumpiions and conditions

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewead on &n ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
eatimales are recognised in the perod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period af the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods,

al Critical Judgements
In the procass of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following

judgements, which has the mosl significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
slatemants:

I Assumptions and astimation uncertainties
Information about assumplions and estimation uncarlsinties that have a significant risk of

resulting in a malerial adjustment during the year is included in the following notes:

Nate 4 — racognition of deferred tax assets: avaitability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used;

Mate 26 — measurement of defined benafit obligations: key acluarial assumplions;

i. Confinoences and commitments:

In the normal coursa of business, confingent liabillties may arlse from [igations and other claims
against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or are

e
A o = 'Jr-]ﬂ.
(:/r;."'b;’ ‘“\:I, b vETY E'-"u'l"ﬁc:ulttu '=:|I.|uarnrrf3r rediably, the EumPﬁm,-' reats l:hem as mmlngenl [habilities. Such hahnntm
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HL Pramoters Private Limited

2.4

241

the customer & adjusted 1o the transaction price; unless i is & payment for a distinct product or

b} Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tha key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment to the
carrying amounts of asseds and liabilities within the next financial vear are discussed below:

. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and finencial assets (Refer note 7.8 and 10]

The Carnpany makes impairmeant for doubtid recoverable, advances and financial assels based
on an assessmant of the recoverability. The identification of doubtiul debts requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carmying value of the other receivables and advances and impaimant
axpenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed,

i.  Waluation of deferad tax asseis [refer noie 4}

The Company review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

i, Meal realEable value of invenbory (refar nobe )

Managament makes an estimate of the net realisable value of inventory based on expected
reafisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiencasivaluation reports.

W, Az perthe company’s assessment there are no maleral income uncertainties over income tax
treatmeants during the current and Previous financial year,

Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of properties comprising of residential units.

The Company recognises revenus when & determines the satisfaction of performanca obligations st a
point in time and subsequently over time when the Company has enforceable right for payment for
performance completed to date, Revenue s recognised upon transfer of contrel of promised products to
customer in an armount that reflects the trensaction price i.e. consideration which the Company expects
io recelve in exchange for those products.

Confract assets are recognised when there s excess of revenua earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified a5 unhilled receivablas (only act of involcing & pending) when there is
unconditional right to recaive cash, and anly passage of lime is required, a3 per coniractual terma.,

Canlract Liabilities are recogresed when there is billing in excess of revenue and advance recehed from
customers.

Revenue from real estate development projects

The Company enters inte contracts with customers 1o sall property that are either completed or under
development,

In arrangements for sale of properties, the Company has applied the guidance in IND AS 115, on
"Revenua from contracts with cusiomers”, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinet
parformance obligation. The arrangements with customers ganerally meet the criteria for considering
sale of properties as distinct performance obligations. For allocating the ransaction price, the Company
haz measured the revenue in respact of each perdformance obligation of a coniract at its relative
standatone selling price. The price that is regulary charged for an item when sold separately is tha bast
evidence of its standadone selling price. The fransaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time
value of money i the contract intludes a significant financing component. &my considaration pavable o

the customer.




HL Promoters Private Limited
Mates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

The sale of completed property constitutes a single parformanca abligation and the Company recognizes
rewvenua when the same has bean satisfied

Company recognises revenue when the below mentiened conditions get satisfad;

»  pooupancy certificale for the project is received by the Company and;

» possession is elther taken by the customer or offer letter for possession along with the invoice for
the full amount of consideration is Bsued io the customer and;

« subsiantial consideration has been received and the Company is reasonably certain that the
remalning considesathon will flow to the antity and;

« lhere are no legal cleims/ complains been made by the customer.

The Company considers whether there are promises In the contract thal are separale performance
abligations or are to be delivered even after completing the aforesaid conditions and to which a portion
of tha fransaciion price needs io be allocated and f 20 the Company allocates the attributable transaction
price and as controf is deemed to have passed to the customer recognizes revenue over lime as tha
related obligations are satisfied.

Far confracts relating e the sale of property under development, the Company is responaible for the
overall management of the project and identifies various goods and services o be provided. The
Company accounts for these items as a single performance obligation becawse it provides a significant
sarvica of integrating the goods and services (the Inputs) into the completed property (the combined
cufput) which the customer has confracted fo buy.

242 Other income

Interest income fram a financial asset is recognised when it is probabla that the economic banefits will
flow to the Company ard the amount of income can be measwed reliably. Infarest income I3 accrued
on a ftime basis, by refarance to tha principal outstanding and at the effective Iinterest rate applicable,
which is the rate thal exaclly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial assat to that assef's nat carying amourt on initial recognition.

The interest mcome on accownt of interest on delaved payment by customers and expenditure on
account  of compensalion/penally for project delays are zocounted for @t the time of
accaplance/setlemeant with the customers due to uncertaintes with regard to delermination of amount
recelvablefpavable.

2.6 Construction Cost

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enabie the Company to complete its performance
obligations, These include cost of land and cost of developmeant rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incured and also include cost of development of common facilities and
amenities.

These costs are allocated to each unit of sale (residential or commercial} on a systematic basis as
construction progress and are expensed when the related revenua in respect of the unit is recognised,

Fending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in
progress/Finshed goods within inveniony,

2.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incuered and exchange differences arising from fareign
currency borrowings 1o the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing
costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project / assels, peraining to the pericd from
commencemant of activities refating to construction / development of the qualifying construction project
/ asseds up o the date of substantial completion of project [ capitalisation of such asset are added fo the
cost of construction project / assets. Capitalisation of barowing costs is suspended and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended perods when active development activity on the qualifyi
constrection project [ assels is interrupted. A qualifying construction project / asset Is an as
o .-""-:-\.nE'EE'H-E-'H”r:I' takes subatantial time or more 1o get ready for is intended use or sale and include resal i
'11'I || state properties developed by the Company.
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HL Promoters Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year anded 31 March 2024

Interest income eamed on the temporary Investment of spacific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying construction projects is deducted from the bormowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurmed,
2.7 Taxation
Imcome tax expense rapresents the sum of the tax currently payable and defarred tax.
2714  Current tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profil for the year,

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the standalone statement of prodit and loss
becausa of items of income or expenseos that are taxable or deductible in other years and #ems that are
never Eaxable or deductible. The currant tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacled or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

272 Deferred tax

Deferred lax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
kabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of {axable
profits. Deferrad tax liabilties are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tex assets are recognized Lo e extent that it is probable that future taxable profil will be available against
which they can be usad. The existence of unused tax lesses is strong evidence that future laxable profit
may not be availlable. Therafore, in case of a history of recent loszes, the Company recognises &
daferred 12x aseet only to the extent that is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there iz
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be svallable against which such deferred tax
assal can be realizad.

The camying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it iz no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset fo he utilised.

Deferred tax liabilties and assels are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the lability is setfled or the assel reallsed, based on tax rates {(and tax laws) thal have bean
enacted or substantivedy anacled by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, al the end of the reporting period, 1o recover or sattie
the carrying amount of its assets and labilities,

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in slandalone Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in ofthar comprehensive income or directly in eguity, in which
case, current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
aquity, respactively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benafits in the form of adjusiment to the future current tax fiability, is considerad 83 an assel i there is
reasonable cerlainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period.
MAT credit is reviewad at each balance sheel date and the carmying amount of MAT credit is written
cown fo the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Company will pay regular
tax during such specified period,

2.8 Impairment of tangible assets

Tha carrying amounts of properly, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewad al each b
sheat dale o defermine whether there is any indscation that those assets have suffered an |

h‘; loss. If any such indications exists, the recover able amount of the asset is eslimated A
E“-\[.':’-' determine the axten! of the impairment loss, if any. O |
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HL Promotars Private Limited
Motes to the financial staterments far the year ended 31 March 2024

e .

An impalrment loss = recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss whesever tha carrying
amount of the asset exceeds is recovarable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the assel's
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
fiows are discounted to their present valua using appropriate discount factar. When there is an indication
thal an impairment loss recognised for the asset in earfier accounting periods no longer exists or may
have decreased such reversal of imparment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Prafit
and Loss.

249 Invantaries

Construetion costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company o complets its peformance
obligations. These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and developmant
costs, borowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and
amenities.

Inventories comprises of cost of construction materiad, finished residential ar commercial properties and
cosis of projects under construction/development {construction work-in-progress). Inventories are valued
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of construction material is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business leas estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary lo make the sale,

210 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) 23 a resull
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required 1o setfle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount af the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best esfimate of the consideration required to setlle the
present obligation at the end of the reporling period, laking into account the risks and uncerzinties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision i3 measured using the cash flows estimated to seflls the
present obligation, its camying amount Is the present value of those cesh flows (when the affect of the
tima value of monay |5 material),

Yhen some or &l of the economic benefits required 1o sellle a provision are expected 1o be recovarad
from & third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset i it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured refizbly.

2404 Onerous contracts

Presen! oblgalions arsing under onerous conlracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considersd to exist whera the Company has a conlract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obfigations under the confract excesd the economic benefits axpected to be
recaived from the contract.

211  Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial lishilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party lo the
contractual provisions of the Instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at falr value, Traneaction costs that are
directly altributable to the acquisition or lssue of financial assets and financlal liabliities (other than
financial assels and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deductad from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabiities at fair
value through profit ar loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.




HL Promoters Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

212 Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets s subsequently measured al amortisad cost, far value through
other comprehensive income of falr value through profit or loss on the basis of its business modal for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assel,

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises financial assets whan it becomes a party fo the contractual pravisiane of the
imgtrument. All financial assets are recognised infially al fair value plus transaction costs thal are
alirbutable to the acoguisition of tha financal assel

Subsequent measuremant

For the purpose of subsequant measurement, the financial assets are classified in three calegonas:
= Debi instruments at amorised cosl

#  Deblinstrumenis at fair value through profit ar loss

s Equity irmvesiments

Debt instruments al amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amorfised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold sssets for colecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initkal measuremant, such financial essefs are subsequently measured at amortisad cost using the
effective interast rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by izking into account amy discount or
premium and fees or costs thal are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from Impairment are
recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss

Debt instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Dabt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loas

Equity investments

All equity investments other than investment in subsidiares, joint ventures and associate are meazured
at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL, For all ather aquity
instruments, the Company decides io classify the same either as al fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYTOCI) or FVYTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The dassification is made an initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If tha Compary decides fo classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC!, then &l fair value changes on
the inetrument, excluding dividends, are récognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no
recyching of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone slatement of profit and loss, even on sale of such
invesiments.

Equity Instruments mclided within the FVTPL category are measured al fair value with all changes
recognised in the Standakone siatement of profil and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarlly derecognised whan:
a. the rghts to receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or
b. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assal, ar
¢. the Compary has neither transferrad nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
gsset, but has fransferred confrol of the assat.

;—_u_ Impalnnant of financial assets

REThe Company applies “simplified approach’ measwement and recognition of imparment los [
a@, | mfoliowing financial assets and credit risk sxposure




HL Promoters Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debl
securilies, deposits, and bank balance.
b. Trade recaivables.

The application of simplified approach does nol require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifelime expected cradit loss at each reparting
date, right fram &s nitial recognition,

213  Financial llabilities and equity instruments

Classiflcation
The Company classifies all fnancial liabilities as subsequenily measurad at amorfised cost,

Initial recognition and measurement
Al financial llabilities are recognised mnitlally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly atiributable ransaction costs,

Loans and borrowings

Afler initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effectve Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone
stabement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised

Amortised cost is calculated by laking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Standalone statement of
prodit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial Rability is derecognised when the obligaticn under the liability is discharged or cancelled aor
expires, When an existing financial labilty s replaced by another from the samae lender on subatantially
different terms, or lhe lerms of an existing liabilty are substantially modified, such an exchange ar
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original lishility and the recognition of & new Habiliy.
The difference in the respective carmying amounts is recognised in the Standalone siatement of profit
and loss.

Offsetting of financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the balance sheat if
there 1z a currantly enforceable legal right Lo offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
sette them on a net basis or to realise the assets and sellle the lizbiities simultanacusly.

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments are recagnised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue
214  Cash flow statement

Cash fiows are reporied using the indirect method, where by profit after tax s adjusted for the effects of
transactions of & non-cash nalure, any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregatad.

215  Eammings per equity share

Basic earmnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit atiributable to the equity holders
of the Cormpary by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
.. eamings per equity share is compuied by dividing the net profit attributable to the eguity holders ohthe o
v :--?-'-.}*;h Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considerad for deriving basic eamipshBi s -
el "{f_;.‘;ﬁqui:r share and alsa the weighted averapge nurmber of equily shares that could have been izsuie
[ *-,'._._‘_%,ﬂ_ﬁﬂnnmminn af all dilutive potential equity shares, The dilutive potential eguily shares are adjusté

171

5 o

w0 A e

el

BT
S



HL Promaters Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.16

217

218

2.19

iy &
N
ot

)

AT

LB

] - =1l
[ MU )
L __-:_.-\...Il
i .. _.-'";:_".:':"I

proceeds recaivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (Le.lhe average marked
value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive polential equity shares are deemed converted as of the
baginning of the perlod, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for sach period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for a8
perods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected price Lo
the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation In the Stalerment of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand and
demand deposils with banks. Cash equivalents are shorl-term balances {with an original maturity of
three momnths or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments thal are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current llabifities in the balance shest,

Dperating cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance shesl based on curment! non-current
classification. An assel is reated as current when it is:

. Expected 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Hedd primarily for the purpose of frading

. Expecled to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent uniess restncted from being exchanged or used to settla a
labiity for at laast twelve months after the reporting period

All other agzets are classified as non-current.
A Hability i= current when:

It is expected 1o be sattled in normal operating cycle

It iz held primarily for the purpose of frading

It is due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Thera is no uncandifional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve maonths
after the reporting period

The lerms of the liabiity that could, 2t the option of the counterparty, resull in its settlement by the issue
of equily instruments do not affect s classification,

The Company classilies all other liabilities a5 non-currant.

The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assels for procassing and thelr realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Campany has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes kave baen rounded off to the negrest lace
as par the reguirement of Schadule I, unless atherwisa staied.

Segment Reporting
The Company operates only In one Business Segment ie, business of development of property and

related activities within India, hence does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting
Standard 108 "Operating Segmenis”,
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1. Background

HL Promoters Private Limited [CIN: U452000L201 3PTC254832] ("the Company™} Is a fimited by shares,
incarporated and domiclled in India. The company incorporated on 3ed July, 2013, is & 51% subsidiary
of HLT Residency Private Limitad {a 100% subsidiary of Tata Value Homes Limited).

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directars of the Company on 26
April 2024

2. Material accounting policles
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have besn prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 (the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisiens of the Act.

Z.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statemenis have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financkal
Imstruments thal are measured at fair valves at the end of asch reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below,

2.3 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at dale of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expenence and other factors that are considered to be relevant,
Actual resulis may differ from these estimates under different assumplions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisians to accounting
eslimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised i the revision affects only that
period, ar in the penod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods,

al Critical Judgements
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policles, management has made the following
judgements. which has the maost significan! effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
stataments:
i A i mation u i

Information about assumptions and eslmation uncartainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in & malerial adjustment during the year s included in the follawing notes:

Mote 4 - recognition of deferred tax assets: avallability of fulure taxable profit sgainst which tax
los=es carried forward can ba used:

Mote 26 - measuremeant of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions:

il Contingences and commitments:

Inthe normal coursa of business, contingent liabilitkes may arise from litigations and other taims
agairnst the Company, Where the potential labilities have a low probability of crystallising or are
wery difficult to quaniily raliably, the Company reats them as contingant fiabilities. Such lkabijs

can be no assurance regarding the outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company {ie
axpact them o have a materially adverse impact on financial position or profitability
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b} HKey sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the fulure, and other key sources of estimation uncestamty at the
end of the reporling period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assels and Nabilites within the next financial yvear are discussed below:

Impairment for doubtiul recoveratde advances and financial assets (Refer note 7.0 and 10):

The Company makes impalrment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assats based
on an assessment of the recoverabilly. The idantification of doubtful debls requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will Impact the camying value of ihe other receivables and advances and impairment
axpenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed

Il WValust rest [ax as 4

The Company review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets st the end of asch reparting
period,

Bl Met realisable value of inventary (refer note B)

Management makes an eslimate of the net realisable value of inventory based on expectad
realisation from invertory taking into conslderation past experiencesfvaluation reparts,

iv. Ag per the company's assessment there are no material income uncertainties over Income tax
freatments during the current and Previous financial yoar.

2.4 Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of properties com prizing of residential units,

The Company recognises revenue when it determines the safisfaction of performance chligations al a
point in lime and subsequently over tima when the Company has enforceable right foe payment for
periormance completed to date. Revenue i recognised upon fransfer of control of promised products to
cusiomer in an amount that reflects the transaction price |.e. consideration which the Company axpects
o receive in exchange for those products

Confract assels are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Confract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing Is pendirng) when there iz
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of fime Is required, as per contractzal terms.

Contract Liabilities ars recognised when thers is billing in excess of revenue and advance receivad from
customers,

241 Revenue from real estate development projects

The Company enters into conlracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or undar
developmeant.

In arrangements for sale of properties, the Company has applied the guidance in IND AS 115, on
‘Revenue from contracts with customers”, by applying the revenue recognition criterla for each distinet
performance obligation. The arrangements with customers generally meet the criteriz for considering

sale of properties as distinct perfarmance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company

has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of & contract at its relative
slandalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged far an #em when sold separately is the best

evidence of ils slandaslone selfing price. The fransaction price is also adlusbad for the effects of the ime

value of money if the contract includes a significant financing companent. Any considaration payabie to

—— the customer is adjusted fo the fransaction price, unless it is a payment for a distingt product or i
g, from the customer

5
e
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2.4.2

2.5

The sale of completed property constitutes a single perfarmanca obligation and the Company recognizes
revenue whan the same has been satisfied.

Carnmpany recognises revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied:

* occupancy certficale for the project is received by the Company and;

= possession is either laken by the customer or offer letier for possession along with the invalce far
the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer and:

» substantial consideration has been received and the Company is reasonably certain that the
remaining considaration will flow fo the entily and:

= lhere are no legal daims/ complaing been made by the customer.

The Company considers whether there are promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations or are lo be deliverad even afler completing the aforesaid conditions and ta which a portion
of the fransaction price needs to be allocated and if so the Cempany allocates the attributable trarsaciion
price and as control is deemed to have passed o the customer recognizes revenue over time as the
refated obligations are satisfied.

Far contracts relating io the sale of property under develapment, the Company & respansible for the
overall management of the project and identifies various goods and services to be provided. The
Company accounis for these items as a single performance obligation because it pravides a significant
service of integrating the goods and servicas (the inputs) Into the completed property (the combined
cutput) which the customer has confracted to buy.

Other income

Interest Income from a financial asset s recognised whan it is probable that the economic benefits wil
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measurad reliahly, Interesl income is accneed
on a time basis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
wiich is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash recaipts through the expected e of the
financial assel to that asset's net carrying amount an initial recognition.

The interest income on accoun! of interest on delayed payment by customers and expendilure on
account of compensation/penalty for project delays are sccounted for &t the time of
acceptance/setlement with the customers due to uncertaniies with regard to determination of amount
receivable/payable.

Construction Cost

Construction cests comprize project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance
obligations, These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and developrmeant
cosls, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of comman facliies and
amenities.,

These costs are allocated to each unit of sale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basls as
consiruction progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit s recognised.

Pending recognition of revenus, Lhe costs are accumulated and disciosed as construction work in
progress/Finished goods within invemnory.

Borrowing costs

Berrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences ariging from foreign
currancy borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjusiment to the Interest cost Borrowing
costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying consiruction project |/ assets, pertaining to the periad from
commancement of aclivities relating to constrection / developmant of the qualifying construction project
lagsels up to the date of substantlal completion of project / capitallsation of such assel are added ta the
cost of constructon project / assets, Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active developmant activity on the gualifyi

. construction projecl / assets is inferrupted. & qualifying construction project ! asset is an ;'. %
- necessarly takes substantial time o more to get ready for its intended use or sale and Includes fhae;
| estate properties developad by the Company. ;
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Interesl income earmed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendlture
on qualifying construction projects is deducted from the borrowing costs efigible for capitalisation.

Al othar borrowing cosls are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
27 Taxation
Income tax expensa rapresents the sum of the lax currantly payable and deferred tax.
271  GCurrent tax
Current tax Is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit for the year,

Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reportad in the standalone statement of profit and loss
because of itemns of Income or expenses that are taxable or deduclible in other years and tems that are
never taxable or deductible, The current lax is calculated on the basis of the fax laws enacted ar
substaniively enacted by tha end of the reporting period,

2.7.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax |s recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabifities in the financial statements and the coresponding tax bases usad in the computation of taxable
profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized Lo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which they can be used, The existence of unused fax losses is strong evidence that future taxable prafit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred lax asset only to the extent thal is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence thal sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
Aszal can ba realized,

The carrying amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the axtant
that itis no longer probabde that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 2l or part of tha deferred
lax assal o be utilised,

Deferred tax liabilifies and assets are maasured at the tax rales that are expected 1o apply i the period
I wehich the liabiity is settied or the asset realised, based an tax rates {and tax laws) that have bean
enaectad or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferrad fax lizbdities and assels reflecls the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or sattle
the carmying amount of ils assets and lizbilities,

Current tax and deferred tax are racognised in standalona Statement of Profit and Loss, excep! when
they redate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, currenl lax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which glves future economic
benafits in the form of adjustment to the fulure curent tax liabllity, Is considered as an asset if thera is
reasenable certainty of it being et off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period,
MAT credit is reviewad af each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit is written
down to the extent there is no lenger reasonable certainty to the effect that the Compary will pay regular
tax during such specified period.

2.8 Impairment of tangible azsets

Tha carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assels are reviewed al sach balance
sheet dale to determine whether there [s any indication that those assets have suffered an impa s
loss. If any such indications exisls, the recover able amount of the asset 5 estimated in '“i—;?’f_‘_‘«\,ﬂ
| determine the axtent of the impaiment loss, If ary. ((*Lf . ,}:LJ
.
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An impairment loss ks recognised in the standalone Staterment of Profit and Loss wherever the CETTyIng
amaount of the asset exceeds its recoverabla amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's
fair value |ess costs of dispasal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to thelr present value using appropriate discount factor. When there Is an indication
that an impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may
have decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Invantories

Construction cosls comprise project costs incurred o enable the Company 1o complate its performance
obligations, These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and developmeant
cosls, Dorrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common faciliies and
amenities.

Inventories comprises of cost of construction malerial, finished residential or commercial properties and
cosls of projects under construction/development (consiruction work-in-progress). Inventories are valued
at the fower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of construchon material = determined on a
waighted average basis,

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constriciive) as a result
of a past event, It Is probable that the Company will be required o settle the chligation, and a relfable
estimale can ba made of the amaunl of the obligation,

The amaunt recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration reguired to setile the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertaintiss
surrcunding the obligation. When a provision I8 measured using the cash flows estimated to settie the
present cbligation, its camying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
tirna value of maney is malesial).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to setfle a provision are expected to be recovered
frem a third party, a recelvable is recognised as an asset i it is virually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

Onerous contracts

Preseni obligations erising under onerous contracts ane recognsed and measured a3 provisions, An
anarous contract | congiderad fo exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the cbligations under the contract exceed the ecenomic benefits expected to ba
recaived from the contract.,

Financial instrumaents

Financlal assels and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomas a party 1o the
contractual provisions of the instrumants,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are
directly attribulable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial habilities {other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial lisbilties, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transacfion costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financal liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immadiately in profil or loss.
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- :.'..'.-_;"_l'ha Company applies 'simplified approach’ measurement and recogniion of impairmeant
1o Tollowing financial assets and credit risk exposure:

212  Financial assots
Classification
The Company classifies financial assats as subsequently measured al amortised cost, fair value through
other comprahensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assele and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Initial recognition and measurement
The Company recognises financial assels when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, All financlal assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs tha! are
atfributable to the acquisiion of the financial assed
Subsequent measuremeant
For the purpase of subsequeni measuremend, the financial assets are classified in three  categories:
+ Dabt instruments at amortised cost
# Debi instrumenis at far vaiue through profit or loss
»  Equity investments
Diebt instruments at amortised cost
A 'dabt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met
a. The asset Is held within a business model whose objective & o hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flowa, and
b. Contractial terms of the asset give rise on speciiied dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount cutstanding
After initial measurement, such financial assats are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisetion is included in finance
inceme In the Standalone staternent of profit and loss. The losses arising from Impairment are
recognised |n the Standalone statement of profit and loss.
Debt instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Dbt instruments included in the falr valua through profit or loss (FYTPL) category are measured at fair
value with ail changes recognised in the Standalone statemaent of profit and loss.
Equity investments
All equity investments othar than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associste are measured
at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FYTPL, For all other equity
instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as al fair valus through other
compreheansive incomea (FVTOCH) or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is rrevocable.
if the Company decides to classify an equity Instrument ag al FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognisad in other comprehensive income (OCH). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone stalement of profit and Ioss, even on sale of such
imvesimeants.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Standalene statement of profit and loss.
Derecognition
A tinancial ssset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarlly derecognised whern:
@ the rights to recaive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b.  the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the azsel, or
c. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset
oo . Impairment of financlal agsets
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8. Financlal assels that are debt instruments, and are measured &t amortised cost e, loans, debt
sacurifies, deposits, and bank balance,
b, Trade receivabies.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changas in credit risk.
Ralher, i recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credil loss at each raporti ng
date, right from its inltial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity Instruments

Classification
The Company classifies all financial iabilities & subsequently measured at amorised cost,

Initial recognitien and measurement
All fimancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, In he case of loans and borrowings and
payables, nat of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings

After inifial recognition, interest-beaning loans and bomowinge are subsaguently measured al amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) mathad. Gains and losses are recognised in the Siandalone
staterment of proflt and loss when the lishilities are derecognisad.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and
lransactions costs, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Standalone statement of
profit and loss,

Dergcognition

A financial liablity is derecognised when the abligation under the liability I8 discharged or cancelled ar
expires. When an existing financial liability k= replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the ferms of an existing liability are substanfially modified, such an axchange or
miodification s treated as the daracegnition of the anginal lkability and the recognition of a new liability.
The differance in the respective carrying amounts = recognised in the Standalone statement of profit
and loas,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial azsels and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is rencrted in the balance shest i
there is & currently enforeeable lagal nght to offset the recognised amounts and there s an Intention o
seltle them on a net basis or to realise the assels and sattie the liabilities simuitaneously.

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the procseds, net of direct costs of the capital issue.
Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit after lax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or ascruals of past or fulure operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses assoclated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attrbutable to the aquity holders
af the Company by the weighted sverage number of eguily shares outstanding during the perod. Diluted
aarnings par equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable @ the equity holders of the.
Company by the welghted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earmings Rete

‘conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive polential equity shares are adjuste
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proceeds recelvable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.the average markat
valua of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive poteniial equity shares are desmad cornverted as of the
baginning of the pariod, unkess issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
indapendently for each perlod presented.

The number of equity shares and palentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all
periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior fo
the approval of the financial statemants by the Board of Direciors.

Cash and cazh equivalants

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand and
demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of
three menths of less from the date of acquisition), highly lguid investiments that are readily corvertible
into known emounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafls. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabifities in the batance sheal.

Opaerating cycle

The Company presents assets and llablities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current
classification, An a==al s treated as current when it is

Expacied fo be realised or Intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Hald primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twalve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liabiity for at least lwelve morths afier the reporting period

= = = =

All ather assels are classified as non-current,
Y IiEiI:hﬂil:,.I is current whien:

It is expectad to be setiled in normal aperating cycle

It i hald primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due io be seftled within lwelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the satiemant of the kability for at least twelve months
gfter the reparting period

@ & @ @

The tarmes of the lisbility that could, al the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the lssue
of equity instruments do not affect ite classHication

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the scquisition of assefs for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identifled twelve morths as its operating cycle.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lacs
as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated,

Segment Reporting
The Company operales only in one Business Segment |.e. business of development of property and

refated activities within India, hence does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting
Standard 108 "Oparating Segments”.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
ax e 3§ March 2024

WCurrency ; MR in Lakde)
3 Property, plant and equipment

THiflce equipsmest Coosputers  Forniture and fiztires Ttk
Ol o ceemed oo
Babance ap 0] April 2022 L1 [E%.1 4. 205
Additions - - - -
Iquuba 0% 224 . 267
Faksee 2t 31 March 2003 0} 1229 EaH| A64E
Disposals - - - .
Hahumor at 11 Mloseh 2024 WIH 11 = 4.0 L]
Accumubatod Sepriciation
Babimee o 01 April 2132 927 12,10 L 2487
Dhopreciation expenses ant 197 A i
Elimsmatbon on disposals of meiy o8 13 : 24
Buikinge at 31 Morch 2023 a.82 1L.RS 363 440
Creprecistion mxpemses . .58 LB (LT
Badence ar 31 Mardk 2024 E93 LEAdd _-.L'.'J 8.0
Carrying amount
Bakince st 31 Masch 2023 026 1.44 38 208 |
Balatice =t 31 Mareh 2024 Tie = e = Bt 13
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Notes to the financial statements (Continned)

a5 at 3§ Marck 2024
[Currendy : MR in Lakhs}

31 March 2024 3l Manch 2023
4 Deferved fax ussets {net)
Deferred tox nssets [net) 11,73 1215
11.73% LL.I5
T2 Dpesing  Recogoied  Resmgoiied i ather Cleolug batapes
hilias imprafiter  comprehnsive moems
|
Deferrel e asels are bn reliion ga:
Difference barwnon oo balanes and te baloe of FRE LM 4.1 7 345
Frasising for erplayis beaefis capemos 13,00 1.8 E3 a3
[ENT] (136 A5 1175
A1 {prsing  Herogoised  Recoguised i ailer Cloxing halmace
baliee ia prafitar  camprehiemive ncams
T
D oo assers. i pelation oc
Frogeriy, plan) and fjuipoizn L7 (OE] " L=
Deliial beschit obipation 440 487 L3 (IR
555 4 131 IL15
- MNon-current tux assets (nef)
Income fax avsets 211 k[ %,
T4l IR
L7 Luventories
LA Tower of tost and net realszbls walus)
Cansinition mutercal AT 15740
Comstoution work-in-progess 14, 56467 11,1321
Flnihed goods - 541.55
47 | 4
Mokes =
61  [nthe opinion of tee manapement, the set realisahle vabsr of the conmtroction work-in-progres will not be lower than the et 30 incladed
ihrrein.
6,2 The cost of inventories recognised as an expenss during e yoar in nepect of operstions was (B $68.09 lakda (far the yeer ended 11 March
023 IR, 02027 lakhs )
e
fl o | e
) ik /
i
li':-:':.,-:"' _*_“-.:.- %
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Motes o the financial statements (Comdnned)
oy e 1) Mavek 1074

{Curency | THR in Lakis)
31 Minrek 2024 11 March 2023

T Trade receivaliles

Unsecured, considersd grood
receivahies from other than relsted partios 1. 76 3580
Lrgecuret, comsidered doubdbal
eeeeivables from otber than refated parties r 4T
Less : Prowizion for doubiiul debtors . (%47
1.76 3580
Trude recelvables ageisg as st 31 March 2024
Fartlzulary Cutstanding for Follewing perlods firam dne dage of iramsaction s on 31 March 2024

Liss than G montks - | year | 1-2 years | 2-3 yoars Muore than Tutal

& momihs 3 vears
(1} UndEsmurted Trnde: reseivnbies - .34 . Lt A1 T.7%
~ considered pond
(iry Urdispuied Trada . = - = - -

Feoeivohles - which tave
figrmtican| merome in credit sk

{ii) Undispaged Troda ; i : y y .2
Becejvebles — crelis tmpainsd
(4] Digguned Trade Recesivnhles ¥ . . . . .
sonsidersd good
(iw) Drisputed Trace Recsivalies - 3 = x : % .
which: e sigeiGcinl ingnses
im Gredi risk
{vi) Dispuied Tiads Recsivabhes = - . s . .
— il irngeired

Tutsl - i1, 31 - LL6 h.23 176

Trade receivobles sgeing &g ot 31 Masch 2023

Particulars Duistamiling for followisg periods fram due date of fransaction ny oo 31 March 2133
Less than 6 mmths - © year | 1-2 venrs | 33 years Mare tham Totnl
6 paanihs X wenrs
{i) Undispuied Trade repsvahles 1254 (50 15| IREE - 15.60
— comgidered god -
(i) Uindispubed Trade - . - - . -

Recervabdas — which hove
sigmificsst insrease o credil nsk

| (1) Undtisputed Trade - . . - . .
 Feceivahles - crsdit impared
iy Digpeated Trnde Reveivibles - - - - -
crnsxlond good
(v} Dimpuied Trode Becelvables - ' & - - = =
wihich bave gignilicent incress
in eendit risk

(i) Crisputed Trade Recevables .
= gredit lnpatred
Tatal 'I.i.?-ll I =51 1%.85 - 3541
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Motes to the fnancial statements (Contdnged)
ar ar ¥ March M

(Camency - INE in Lakbs)

10

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cish o=l cash equivalints
Hnleoces with banks
= §T CUCDENE o codets
Tepasit with maturity of les than 3 mosths

Cush nmd cash equivalent as per Smement of cash Bowa

Oiher financial assers « current

Dlepis
[ebersst acszuil on deposis

Ciher eurrent assely
Ealances with govermnent aniborties
- (ET receivabie
Lese - Proviston for doubthid dguat with govermment suthoritdes (refer note 413

Aldwmee in vendors
Lizza: Previzinn fnr doubtfal sdvarce

Lnags and nilvance i cmploees
Miphikizatinn ndvence

Prepuid sxpenses

31 March 2024 3 March 125
24D 2,254,437
S0 00 -
ST 335
537403 225443
21.H3 IT.67
148 =
23] 257,
54141 58132
{454,758 [454.75)
ME.66 L i)
121,60 180,06
(6.0 (6. 00y
11560 184.06
oae 141
651 A
i 4.
33374

L3725
p—




HL. Prometers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
ax mt 37 Mook 2034

{Currency ; BYR im Lakhs)

13 Mosn-current borrowings

Unsecured - ag amortiseed el
Lomns from related parthes (See neie I7i
HLT REezidency Private Limited | Befer noe 13,1)

151  Loams Trem reloted parties
{a) Imteresl
Enterest mie is cateidagead ol 13% pir anoum an per tonos of the repryment,

{h} Bepuyment terms

31 Morch 2024

A1 Mlar:h 2003

17.149.73

7. 145,71
" —

As per the Hﬁl=mmﬁmmmpﬁmc{nwmnﬁﬂmm eiicred befwor the parties, the boan will be repmid afier Be
piyenent for cost of developmens of project, progest managasent foss, marketing fees, regulniory e acd any atfier corstnaction Tosn aken

fromn hanles.

14 Oeher financial Haldbities - non current

Reztention monsy pavabis
Enterest noorued aed due o bonywings
Security deposits recevad

15 Other nati-carrent liabilities
Advance from cusoemes

16 Mon-current provisions
Frovision for employec henefits:
- Priveision for compensated shserces {refer pome 261
- Peovvigdan For gratuity (Refer note 26)

W B8

131230

Irm 11238

.16 401178

i 1500 351595

1500 3,515.95

T8 1159

RRR ] 216

AiLAD 3175
= e
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Motes to the financial statements {Condineed)

ag ar 11 March 3034
(Cwmonsy : [ME m Leihs}
31 March 3034 1 Maph 2023
17 Trade payables
Iztal cutstending dues of micro enterpnsss and svall enteprss (refer sole 1) L9 :
tutul sutstinding dues of creditors other chan miono eniepaizes ond srall sneprss A B34 i, 80628
B4.TH fi, B06. 28
Traile payable ageing ns ot 21 March 2014
Particulars Chutstanding For followleg perbods from due date of prymont
Mol due Less than | yenr | 1-2 years | 3-3 years | Bore than 3 vears Tatai
MEKE 10,14 - - = - | [E2
Clihers 1,043,74 10559 403,50 LI0.BO 5 09%.T4 JRE4TH
Dlispnted Thues - MSME B = X % : .
Dispasel Dhus - Dihers . - - = - -
Total LAk, 58 e 5 4013500 LHLED 3,009, T4 4B, T2
Traide payabide ageing as at 31 March 2013
Particulars Chitstanding For fellowing perivds frum due date of payment
Mot disn Less dhan Lyear | 1-2 yeary | 3-3 yveary | More than 3 years Tuotal
MIME . g = = . ‘
Ohbery 1,107.1% 1,087 8 490 3% i 1,555 15 £50528
Edtgpraiend Dhess - MSME - . - = =
| Drigperiet [hies - Diihers . . . . - -
Tatal 1387.1% 1,087.63 492.36 E32.73 2,86 14 ]
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Motes to the financial statements fContinred)
g 3 Mgty 2024

(Curmeney © [INRin Lakhs)

18

[k

il

Oriher financial linbilities = current
Bilention money payabis

Lecuminy doposils received
Finynddes i crpdinices

Crther current Habibities

Revenye renpivad in sdvance
Achvance {imm custamize®
Stabwiory dues

* Adwance from Casiomers are ander rioncilation

Short-term provisions

Providon for employes henefits

- Prowision for compensated sheences {refer noe 261
- Provision for gmiuity (Refer nole 267

%1 March 824 3] March 2021
13202 172,43
19,25 4.0
.07 2.
151,34 21563
— _—
- 24157
" ELAT
20,7 56,71
20,70 45140
159 345
AT 4.34
1105 R7S




HL. Promoters Private Linufted

Hubes in the Mnnncial statements {Condneed)
& ar 31 Moroh 2054

{Cumenoy : INR in Lagdis)

P

31 Afarch 1024 31 March 2121
Chtherr eqquity
Refains] samings (14,267.12) {1600343)
Dypionanlly fonvertihle debentures (peder soce helinw) B0 =
Ot capital ccatribution 1560731 .
Tatal J&'B t]ﬂl] 43;
{11 Ritainid enrmings
Balarce o the bepinning of da: year (1R333,4%) {15,530.01)
Het o) Tor the yisar [RLIT) [397.1
Iz el oviber comprebensive income secagesaed dircily m mdained EUMINgS:

Fememsumments of paat-aspleyment baefil chlipeion, netof mx {2411 (542)
Balancd & the omdd of the year 16, 26722 1503143
(i} Cptomadly convertible delserdures
Hakmce at the bepinnmg of o year = s
I=saaed ihiirisg the wsar LR -
foendmed dunng the year {25810 2
Binlance md the emd of the e IR0 .
(i) Diber capital comiribution
Dalznce at the begioning of the veir = .
[saed daring he yesr 15,687.01 -
hﬂﬂtﬂ!lh--nﬂﬂﬁ;m Imﬂ -

Mature mnd perpos: of Feserves

i) Retalngd cirnings
Retnimed esming are the profits tat the Company has ssmed bl &2, b sy trmsfars b genered reserve, debemiars redinption noerve, dividends ar
nther distribetions padd tn sharehaldens:.

Made

Optinnally csmvertilsle (bebeniures

During the year, the Comgpany his sswed 194,615,470 msecured and wimicd Opicosly Convertible Debeniures, 0008 of Tacs wabae ol B, 10 exchat
pear B 4 fnll cash comsideration of MK 1946200 likh o HLT Residency Privoe [wdted. The Company has used the enfire procesds resaverd from
izsue of 0% B repey Hie ITDs {incheding aconied infevest, F iy} of TN, 15,462.00 knkhs. The 00 Dy bseed are cussiBed ar Exeity in sccamdance with
e requiresents of Ind AS 12 and the covsidention received oo subscription of the OCDE. i diclosed under * Optiomily Comvertikle Debentune:’ & fir
i ol the bebace = disclosed undes *Cither Capiisd Codtribotion' m Saiement of changes és equity, Dt of the totl OO0 issoed, 00T of s 25
Inkks e redemeeed deetng the yeer

These OUTH camy iesist vk of 0.000% payeble 4l Girst thes yeiey sod Huseafber subject fo issuscs financil pusllicn and approprizte spread ove the
e depusil inteeest e with e Siste Bank of Indin dor & 35amoes fennre. kwsrest (vither duniag ihe ficst 3 years or dunisg T Tatér itage] skall be
Tahle by the wveer depending an the profitability of e compeay and jis tesd for aing de surpivs funds for any oier Biesiness perpoms at it
dizcration. The OUDs are rexfeemable an fbcs vl within 10 ymrs fom the daie of e wiless sxwnded oo Bather term, o ihe disceenon of t s
The redemption dese is subsequently exteidable ot te option of the issoer fior futher veer, Any time Tl manmity, subseriber ca comvert B DCT
e equity Shares s por the conversion matic | 1:1) basis e ayuity valmtion 31 per the valustion report of the repistered valuer. On die dmie of mansity,
the sner can Sirher conven the cutstanding OCTs mn equicy shan: st th comversion ratin {1:1) determined on fhe date of issue or redees o por.

B



HL Promaters Private Limdred

Notes o ihe lnancial statements {Continned)
ar 37 Moroh N0

(Comeecy : INH. = Lakhz)

¥ Marck 2024 1F March W%
11 Equity sharc capital
Equity share enpial LTI RO
Antherimd
10,000,500 fagat }E Wnoch 2003 2 10,000,000% equity shees of INIE 10 esch 1500.0E 1 000
Teyued, swbscribed anid Tully pid-ap
H,000,000 (8 4t M bereh 0 = £ 000,000 ity shans of MR 14 ech M) BAHLON
Beder noviea £13, 3], ik fivd and () badaw
{0 Fvvemmd in equity share eaplial
A8 of 31 Furch 1024 dom ol 31 lwech 2028
Fuacsar o aharos dmpemi Pl ol Mg e

Expuity shars raplial
AL et I iremy i i ey NI [LLEC] LA S
Lemrer g 30 prar 2 . . 1
D tetasding i tha wudd of e poar ¥, WL LA I!EE BN

Tarms and rights arteched 1o aguity shares

The Company hers imased one class of equine shins: oing feoe salos of INE 10 esch. Eack harobalder [s sneiled 16 aac vils per share. In the even iof
firguidtion, the equity shareholdees imn ufiphile to reconve the restaising asasts nfthe Crmpony sfier distrileson of wll prafimential anows, (6 pripsrion g
their sharshoiding.

ity Bhires af the eampany bold by balding cospuny

s el 31 Nlarch 28340 awal 31 easch W23
e bir Wl AlEres Ampomi ke of s AcErm
BLT Dedderay: Prratde Limaied R HEm 40,30 D g
QUi Mietalls of shares beld by shardmlders hol@ing mare thes 5% of shares:
A i A1 March 1834 Ao al 31 ksch X123
Peasiber of Shabes %4 Hicding Mumbat of dar & Plaking
PIT Mesidancy Friviie Lonod AX M S HLERR 3100
S Keabech Privee Linied 303900 e L LT
SA3 Bealeds L= - LA a0 0m R
Siacarseried 10 5 Reulizch Frovaie Losdiod walf | 5 Dleverler 3121
(¥l Agiregate sember of sheres Bsued far considerstion othor thas zash
el 1 March 35634 Aselh] b 301y
Agpregrio mrrker nf thans Bl for cenaderstion aifser S ok . -
{v)  Shervngbdiag of Frivm
Axal Maovh 14
Franaie Chsbal har Mo ofgharm s Chaitgs Dirig e Ke. ef nhars o ke W of Totnl Shemrm %y dlshage duarleg e
Cie nginning of FEET el all Ee year year
Ak yuur
Egaity sharm R - LU L H A% -
Chanalmares M4 afdhere b Chempeurngtte Wb, olibermoat the | T o Tl Shines | thuage Surieg ta
e Emginning of near el T E NEAT wear
ther yenr
Eaquity xiarms B i T 1%
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| |Assignment LACCO

2900000273 10200015 21304251 100002279

18-12-2023

29-02-2024

2900000273 10200015 21304052 100002559




30-12-2023 30-12-2023 50 -1,94,61,99,700.00 INR
20-02-2024 29-02-2024 40 1050 25,00,000.00 INR
i f I | |-194,36,99,700.00[INk |

19,452.00




*MM1105+ Borrowing / Increase 0000010000000
*MNM1110- Borrowing / Decrease 0000010000000




HPNCcoooo " 100002279
HPNCCOD00 1000025549

|I | I PR |




HL Promoters Private Limited
NMotes to the financial statements (Contfrnwed)
Jor the year ended 37 March 2024
{Cumemiy ; INR in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

J1 March 2034 1 Barch 2023
21 Revenuoe from operations
Sale of properties 553,94 F 48585
Less: 1Y Share 11n72 #2342
Met hale of properties A4326 4 65637
Crber opermting revetimes
- Diher mcmne from cusiomers 2540 13404
4%, 75 4 A0 1
2! Other income
Inierest on
- fined deposits from bank d3. 10 -
= delayed payment by custodmers 058 24322
= Imcome tax refund 105 405
Clier non-opernting lncome
Serap sales 111 037
Excess provision written back 11046 -
Sundry balence written back 1.7 4,24
11956 3280
23 Cost of sale
Ut of sale S6H.8% 4,1329.27
568,80 4,125,217
24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and Bonus ete. 25483 o
Cantribution to Provident and Other Funds 12.56 1248
Staff Welfare Expenses 019 (153
26T.68 206,83
Leas: Apportionment o consmuction work-tn-progress ' (198,66} (126,046)
[ 17077
—

i
-.1':'_: f_"l.
fleaf .. |
'1| = ML |43 m
oo, e
"\'1-__1-' ol N
- o
e Ch F."




HL Promoters Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Contfnued)

Jow vhee pear ended 37 Mareh 2024
{Currency : TNR, in Lakhs)

25 Other expenses
Legal and professional expenses
Fates and baves
Travelling Expenses
Repairs and maintennnce - ofhers
Insumnce
Sedling expenses

Payments to auditors {Refer nobe {1} heloa)

Clzstpmer compensation
Bank charges
Mizscellansous expenges
Blad debis

Losa on Bale of Assets

Nide:
{ly Payments to the auditoes comprise ;
Te stahatory suditors
For Statutory andit
fn other capacity

Far the year ended Far the year ended
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
5155 2951

13,04 F1.62

3,35 108

1i4.47 E15.43

431 K17

54.23 anzy

DA 398

143 1,54

0.1= 3,54

1739 2758

- 4915

. oag

EEJ-I L1374

287 2348

6.5% 160

!‘I.ﬂ_ .58




HL Promaters Private Limited

Mates to the finaneial statéments {(Cortinned)
a1 Aavgsh 108

(T iy : INIL in Lakde)

e ) Pl Party Tea ot
T A | [List af redaied pariles i relaciomnbip

&r. Mo Pariicnlurs

i Lliimass Pases Comiiany
Tuata Sorrs Privaie Limied

(b Parest ol Taka Bowksg Devdogsnisi Comsony Limised
Tula Relley ned hefastreciure Limiied

(el
Fotn Voo Howmes Limitzd

Ivh Haldies compmey
HLT Remtensy Privein Limited

Wl Compaay vilch bolid sutsisnal B
548 Rzilioch LLF fupis |5 Diecembar 3127)
SAE Beahedh Private Linksd fwel | F Deosmher 2TEL

A1 Felbee salidiftaciis of boldog
T Comsaharcy Servioss Limied
Tami C pmseniadnn Lanibal
Tt AN Genernd Insarmsce Company Lisbed
THEC Marsweerenl Services Limted
{Formmeealy ks o THOC Faciliy Mamesnsai Limied)
Tuin AL Life [nsurspse Company Linked
Sezior 113 Daiesails Develirpors Prevain Limried
Symemzisers Susisinshle Foundstion

{h) Amiveiato of baldiniultimaes olfeg cammany
Titan Compemy [imired

(vil)  Key Messgenieal Fervannel
Direciery

1 Sarrieale Ml

2 Sheraghan Siegh {upto 09 Apdl 2027

1 Eirtikusor Burdelor (o0, P Agal 70X
4 frish Choudbary

—t..00 b Lt 1 L L

e hedding company {inclnding steo dowa selsidiary)

i Transacdamitalances cuiscandiag with relaied partia

Far vear mmuded Far ended
T | P Pz raanscEa e FeEar
= o Tty ¥ 3 March 2024 | 31 March 30
1| Tat Biaging Develiprneal Comnpany Lemnned al Dby Treanoaeroes
[ Hediding Compary] Expenzes inamed m belm il of company D546 (%
) Crpmytanding Palmmces Reeeivaliles
Chirs Reaivenhis 1M -
) Drefatandipg [Balances parable
| Triede Papible it M




HL Promoters Private Limdted

Motes to the financial statements (Condlned)
s o 3 March 2004

(Ciemeny - MR in Lakha)
w Belated ety Tr o sdctiens

Fi Transacsomibalnwees omslemding with relsed pariies

; kY Far year endsd Fiet year eredeal
Sr. Na. Farty Name Matuee of Treasein 1 Mlerch B8 T ke i i
1| Taq Vae Homes Liziked af Db Tramnctisns
(Holigy Comgany} Fxpomzes mowmsd on betalf of eoshpeny 0.5z 1
bk Castrtanding Balanoes gayalibe
rads Payadle 171,01 287TLE]
3[HLT Residency Frivats Lindted 2 Expemaen
(Helding Company) Reresme share 5547 anyr
B Oithier Transaciioms
Faler eorponts depoadls el IT 9 TH 1. B 6]
[alerzst oo brerwdng mpaid izar -
[esme of optionly tonvestizle debanhumy o463 THi ;
Fadisniption of optiaenily sarrserible debertares 151000 -
o Dwivtanding Unlances payabla
Intes corpoea e depinit 1.op s
Iptemast poorned of Inosr crpoiee depnosii £ E
Tiaile i AL T
Cpilamaly comestivl: debenng 19,437.00 C
4fRAE Pealiech LLFY al
ICoiriny which hokds mibstensal Ravenus sham Spde AN
¥ Cimvreried o S48 Peakech Priveie Limied wal 15
Pregsmbor 1 3N hi Manrandag Bafnscoe: parabls
Treske Pavadhiks - 41430
Bl Prieate [ imisad i i) Eapmives
(Coeponny which bolds sebaxaiial serest) Revvanis share AA0
(A Coovgried from $05 Prakef LLP wel 15 Deopmbar
i 1) Drwtsindlog Balinees juyable
Tradie Fayatln K56 =
B[ Szzter | 13 Crrmitn Levezbapens Prinaie Limiled u) Other 1A actioes
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Motes to the financial statements fCamilnned)
mrat 31 March 2024
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HL Promoters Private Limited

MNotes to the financial statements (Corfinred
a5 gt 3 WMol 205

(Creretey @ INR m Lakha)
M Earnings per share

31 March 1Kd 31 March 3023
Loss after tan (PE § Millions) LA {33137 FECEE
Pt ber 0T ojusity shanes: CHp &0, 111,050 B0, W1 0
Adhl: Dpbivanl comertible debenturss conertile al fived somversion mio {ses nooe below) 19.43,79,570 -
Tuial weighted weerage mumber of anfisory shaves ps a 31 Morch 2024 for coleulsting Basis {Cl &, 21 ARGAD 3
Diluted EFS
Eamning Per Share — Basic (i TNR} [ ] (AT [ G
Earning Pei Share — Dikuled (T [NF)* Al (189} 3
ol

In ecandance with Ind A5 33, ordisiry share: Bt will be issued wpon the comversion of & manilstorily convertible instramest ar included in the
exkeulabion of bosic emmmgs per shars from (b dige the e is entered inio.

* Aziti-dilutve - henos not cocssdarnsd

1% Sepment Reporting

The Company & mainly cogagial i the basiness of devedopment of pregerty aard nelafed activities within Inlin. Based oo the tifcemation reperied to the
chiof operating decision maloer (COUM) for the purpose of resource allocation e sssesament of pecformance, tere we oo reporshls ogmemis i
ieeandisee with the requirenents of Indies Accounting Standand [08-Opemting Segmeat Reporting, ootifial under de Compazdes (Indian Atcmmling
Staadands) Rukes, 2013,

30 Disclasure under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises Develapment

The disathunes m nexpot of the omoue payuhie m enerprises which kave provided poods s servicss: @ the Company md which gealify wder the
definition of micm i small entesprises, a5 defined under Micr, Small and Medours Enterprises Developmess Act, 2006 s been mads in the
strcilone fnascisl shotemens 35 6 31 March 2074 basad on the infareation secesved and mvailsbls with the Cospany. O the bz of sk
infematin, oredit balmee as ar 31 Miseh 2024 of such misprises is MR HE (31 Miock 2023 : TNE il L There are oovduss op accrm! of obenes.
Auditirs berve melivd upon ihe infoomation provaded By the Company

Paricik s 31 March 0T M Mnick 205%

rincipal grsiint FER] W 13 ip szppher o e d af mch pvowmiiag yer TS .
Irterisn das fhesece i (heond af saoh B codeibng yoar H

Wﬂlbfumﬂﬂ“htﬂfﬁmmlmmmﬁithﬂtﬂ}.ﬁqrﬂhhmﬂulmnﬂnum - 3
12 sa I RET Byl he ippetnic Say during each 3ocoanting pear

ﬁlﬂmﬂhwﬂllidm‘kﬁhpﬂﬂﬂqmmwﬂﬂﬂhmmhmmqmuﬂ 1k =
day duris g e year) bl withoast scding the inlere g pecaied wide e BEMED, 2006
Ameid af Enbinet acoroed and mmatning eopaid dfthe eel of eack seeoaesing year, aerd - .

The pmasne of irber i) rEnEing doi sed prshlssrm i e soocesdis g e, ool ssch dais when i et = .
U8 phorve Wi ey paid b e sl oo for (e parpose of dkaRreses s o dedectizls mpendinme mder weetim 23
ol e MENED S, D26

31 The Company did not bave sey lnng tenn contracts including derivitive contrets for which there were any megenal forssiahls lsses

AT There wers oo anoumts which were sequirsd (o be Oksefred, o the Enesor Education snd Prosestion Feed by the Compeny,




HL Promoters Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Condlnued)
e it 31 Manch 30N

(Curmency @ [NE i@ Lakhs)

3} Iocome tax

%1 Inceme fax pecognisid is Stadeaont of profit amd loss
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M bl

Curress lax
1o respaci of e coresa | velr - .

(.

Lz s=ypreci af e cerna yoar IIE LR 5]
EZE {4

— .

Talal kikaise by eapesen: reeng el n the curmeni year LI& (LK |
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MLcas) bekoe s amnan DL

Sziniory incwme o 1L 16 I

Tas o [nalish Waralony e G mie R TR

fuld: Defened ma oo definer] benerdlt obligation rocagaisd [n D1 iis 151

Desferieal [in o 5es nal mgail arrend e oo copveet year biesises kesss sLay 141,51

Defermial las mimin m phar nmag difremee L34 433y

lik2arax laz expenss | | ncarsa] mcagaied B e Sieomeer ol Foa B & Lein 11§ (L]

Th= tan e wsend S e Nisseoial ywwre 10012004 moonciliatnn o bores o (s S8rpanmis by see <E1650 % payalils by

COpUTHE ilics m india na feashie prodis of law than THE 19 801000 wder (e bl s law

31.E  Imenme tax recegaised In ofbiy eomprolsive income

mne1|m1

Yuoar snded X1 March
a2 h 1N
I fae
Arierg m occree and acperasy meesgrased i o Conljrdisa e incaas -
Marcapimereal ol defed el ol gation LE LY 18j
NES 121

13 Delered &
Thocampany sfeoo o aaesis and liabikdes (Food soly if i hes o begally enBre=abls rphs be ot off careal s e s and ourrens o e (s dad (e defentd o oty a0

Sefrred tx Nabiliies refais e krodms s brvied by the i o puthariny

Sigeficanl masagzman judzana @ reqeined o Sdeniniag Eovision e Beoee Lo, defomed fceme topmers a0d BasiEie aod recoveoh iy of defsred oo
igen, The escoeabiliey of defemed imrome mx mes b essd on Sinens of mashis laeome 438 ke poricd aver wiich Arfemd income i a8s wil be rezavermd hury
chisiges i Bruse lmashle moeme weold ispest the pesgsarbilby of Seftred s msst
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Cirerpriory can ooz the teoei Bareirom
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Mpbvs o the Mmenchl steemens (Canfausdy
i 0 Adaeck 3024

|Fmreacy - TR gy Lakka)

M

W]
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Finanelal risk mamzemeni
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HL Promoters Private Limited

Maotes to the financial statements {(Continoed)
a1/ March 2024

[Cisrency - [WR in Lakhs)
3K NI AS 115 = Bevenue from Coniracis with Costomers

a) Significant chamges {n condract liabilities balunees are a3 follss

Partleulurs An il AL BE

Y| Mlaech 2024 10 Barsh 20T
Courle gt Bl
AL [l hegianing of the wporing peried 350041 el 0
PCunrabative caich-ug od i iment affoctiog conrec! Hakilisp LE# 3T LIELRAT
LAl et eanil ol the reporiing periad B TEE00 10000k
b} Reconcillation of revenne recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
okl iiry il A B

M March 3924 31 Mech 2323

‘siract price of the revinue recogEied 553158 344% K5

| meersr s hanidHatdl st - -
Revemee fram fale of Renl Eeab Devdaprassniland recogaised in ihe Stutemeat of Proft and Lan 551.58 RE ]

c} Performance Dbligatbon

The apgrepsia amoustof the tunsaction price allceated fo the perfoniance ol petions that are yssatisfizd (or pertinlly srastisfed)
i3 b 31 Mareh 2034 i INR 10,558.33 lakhs | 31 March 2023 ¢ 100513,36 Iskhe} cut of which INE 10,558.37 Iakhe (31 March 2023
1 553,58 |nkhs), which wll be recogniserd as revenue oiver @ peniod of 1-2 yeans sod THE 041 (31 Mench 2023  INR Ml | wiseh will

ke revpgrised pwer o period af 24 years.




HL Promoters Privabe Limited

Motes fo the Mnanckal statements (Coniinmed)
a5 X1 Mvpeed 034
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HL Promaters Privote Limited

Maotes to the linancial statements (Cmminred)
i ar 3¢ Mo J074

[Curceney ; [ME in Lakhs)
40 Contingent liabilitieg

Clalm againg the Compamny not neknowdedged o debs in rerpect of wits Bied by ownens and ceskomen of conmin propertios being cossmstal ¢
deveinped by the Company eniousting i Ry, 13,65 Inkhs {31 Manch 2027 © s S5.00 Takha) finchaive of iniceest), ageiist which Compary hns made
oountet clairs of B Mil (31 Murch T30 ; Rs Hil). The Cosipany haeed on prat sxperimies does not anticlpaie isy suscrisl lisbility modevnlve on i 13
mexul Sereal,

Futare limet cotflow of resoseces embodying exomois boefits iz respect of e ahove matlers s encertain a5 7 dogends oa he final euteommy of
the matiens involved

41 Conds & service tax inpat
The Cotapasy Buad Gled o WRIT Fotition with Honomble Delhl High Coun on 18 Septembar 2000, 0 enaiie i o sevise it TRAN| rstrs oo Goods
sl Bervics Tase (GET} portal to transfer service lax erodit avaibed by it to GST doclng he Mnancisl yeir endod 31 March 2021, The Continy reosived
n fveasble order from e Henarsdsle Delki Tigh Tourt oa 27 Biay 2021, Substqucsl & changes in fhe G5T provisions with respeet i nes e dential
prijeiti amd ns GST leviabls o projecis sutsequast w iecsipl of Creoopation centficate, snce oll the ongning projess in e Compaay sumenly havw
#n Cozupeton corti fioaie the Bietbood of uiing the 05T Inpulcredét is remiie gnd accontingly, the Company bas made & provision i the et o
wtilisati o s 0 be douhiful,

42 The Company during the Basneial year aadeal 31 Marcs 523 has teosived s ender wh 0110/ 250 {LA) of the lscome Tex ael 1961, whee B
Dlemnand of Rz X734 likte hid heen tasmad on non dermotion of TIS o EDC prymen i HUDW, Compey b el meceamry Appeals against sech
demmd rder.

Civerrprezyy belimn (hai if hes stmog geounds io win s sppond | fho oo adjesmenes e oesidered necessary i these Enanclil skiemems

43 The Compeny has Sscurel keses of Bs 225,78 Lakhs doring the year, fhe Company has reonived an anderiakisg frem the promto for contivos
fingacial support. Hence, the fimancial salements are prepansd usde ging S ssamption

1 pr i oo of cven dale atached.
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HL PROMOTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Datec 26 April 2024

Ms. Esha P. Shah

Partner

/S T.P. Osbwal & Associates LLP,
Chartared Accouniants,

1308-7, LODHA Supremus,
Senapali Bapat Marg,

Lower Pared,

fumbal — 400 013

Diaar Sir,
Sub: Management Representation- Statutory Audit for Year: April 2023 to March 2024

We confirm io the best of our krowledge and balie!, the following representations given to you in connection
with your audit of HL Promolers Private Limited {'the Company’) financial statemeants for the year ended
March 31, 2024, We acknowledge ae Direclors of the Company, our responsibility for the financial
siatemanis which heve been prepared to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and
approved by the Directors this day, We further confirm that the Indian Accounting Siandards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with rule ¥ of the Companies (Indian Accounfing Standards) Rulas, 2015, to
the axtent applicable have been complied in the prasentation of these financial statemeants.
We understand that your examination included such tests and procedures as you considered necessary for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financlal statements, We alse enderstand that such fests and
procedures would nol necessarily detect fraud, imagularitiss or error, should any exist. We acknowledge
that control over and responsibility for the prevention and detectian of fraud, iragularities and error remains
wilh s,
In particular we confirm that wa are respansible for the following:
1. The preparations of financial statements are free of materal errors and omissions and present fairly
the financial position of the Company and the results of its operations in accordance with generally
accepted acoounling principles.

2 Wa have made available to vou all accounting and financial records and other redated data of the
Company.

3. There are no matarial ransactions that have not been properly recorded In the accounting records
undarlying the financial statements.

Wa acknowledge our responslbifity for:

g) Daesign, implementation and maintenance of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud.
We undersiand thal the term “frasd” includes misstatements arising from fraudulent financial
reporting and misstatarnants arising from misappropristion of assets. Misstaterments ansig from
fraudulent firancizl reporting are infentional misstalements, of omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to decaive finandial statement users.

by Safeguarding of the assats of the Company and for preventing and datacting the frauds and othar
irreguiarities.
o) Selectng and applying appropriate accounting policies,
4. There have bean no:
a) iregularities involving any member of the management or employees who have significant roles
in the systemn of intermal accournlting control;
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HL PROMOTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

b} irregulariies imwalving other employvees thal could have a materal effect on the financial
statemants;

¢l wiclatlon or possible violalions of laws and reguiations, the affect of which should be considered
tor disclosure in the financial statemants or as a basis for recording & 1088 or @ contingency; and

d)  known viclations | non-complianca of relevant provisions of any law | act applicable o the
Company, including the Companies Act, 2013

] We havea no knowledge of any fraud or suspecied fraud affecting the antity mvolvng
al Mamnagesment
b) Employess who have significani rokes in infernal ot

L We have no knowladge of any allegations of fraud or suspected frawd affecting tha entity receved in
communications from emplovees, former emplovees, analysts, regulalors, shorl selers, or others.

Accounting policies

7. The accounting policles which are material or critical in detarmining the rasults of oparations for the
yvear and the financal position are sat cut in the financial statemenis and are consistent with those
adopled in the linancial siatemants for the previous year. The financial slatements are prepaned on
the accrua! basia.

Share Capital
&, (&) Asrequired by Schedule 1l o the Act, we have given following correct infarmation-

— Authorized Share Capiial

-+ Issued Share Capital

-+ Subscribed and Paid-up Shara Capital

—  Reconciliation of outstanding number of shares

-+ Delais of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

—+  Detais of shares issued otherwise than for cash'bonus shares/shares bought back during the
immediztely precading § years

(o) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions altached o Shares

The company has one class of Equily Sharas having par value of 10 per share, Each sharehoider iz
eligible for one vote par share held. Tha dividend, if, proposad by the Board of Direclors, s subject
io the approvat of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting, except in case of inferim
dividend. In the event of liquidation, e aquity shareholders are aligible o the remaining assets of
the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharehalding.

Assats
g, The Company has a satisfactory title 1o all assets and there are no Eens or encumbrances on the
Compamy’s assets, excopd Tor those which are disclosed in fhe financial statements,

Property, Plant & Equipment
10.  Mona of the Properly, Plant & Equipment have been revalued during the year

—r——r——
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